Living Vegan DUMMIES

Learn to:

- Create a healthy and balanced vegan diet
- Choose a vegan transformation program that works for your lifestyle
- Veganize your favorite recipes
- Travel, eat out, and feel confident in social situations



Vegan chef and lifestyle coach



Living Vegan For Dummies®

Table of Contents

Introduction

About This Book

Conventions Used in This Book

What You're Not to Read

Foolish Assumptions

How This Book Is Organized

Part I: "Ve-gan" at the Beginning

Part II: Building a Healthy Vegan Diet

Part III: Sticking to Your Guns: Staying Vegan

Part IV: Tasting Is Believing: Vegan Recipes

Part V: Living Vegan in the Real World

Part VI: Veganism for All Walks of Life

Part VII: The Part of Tens

Icons Used in This Book

Where to Go from Here

Part I: "Ve-gan" at the Beginning

Chapter 1: The Lowdown on Vegan Eating and Living

You Are What You Eat: The Health and Food Connection

Heart-healthy, low-fat, cholesterol-free foods

```
Feeling fine with fiber
    The power of proper protein
    The healing power of plant foods
 <u>Living Vegan Beyond Your Diet</u>
    Fierce, fabulous, fur-free fashion
    Keepin' it real at home
    Staying vegan in a nonvegan world
 Energetically Speaking: The Spiritual Side of Veganism
 Tackling Common Questions about Veganism
    Why on earth would you live like that?
    What can a vegan eat?
    Is it a balanced diet?
Chapter 2: Understanding the Impact of Vegan Living
 Straight Talk about the Ecological Impact of Animal Protein
    Water pollution and water scarcity
    Toxic odor and air pollution
    Mountains of manure
 Having Reverence for All Life
    Taking action against food injustice and malnutrition around the world
    Standing up for animals
<u>Chapter 3: Transforming to Veganism</u>
 Going Cold Tofurky
    The pros of converting quickly
    The cons of going too fast
 Taking a Slow, Systematic Approach
    Advantages of taking your time
```

Problems with pacing yourself

The Nuts and Bolts of Changing Over

Choosing your timing wisely

Educating yourself and enrolling your comrades

Making healthier decisions by planning your meals ahead of time

Purging nonvegan products from your life

Getting to know your new community

Focusing on the fun and adventure of being a vegan

Part II: Building a Healthy Vegan Diet

<u>Chapter 4: Essential Nutrients for Healthy Success</u>

"B"-ing Healthy with B12 and B2

Finding B12 and B2 in vegan foods

Getting enough of the right kind

Counting on Calcium for Strong Bones

Boning up on calcium requirements

Seeking out calcium in vegan foods

Avoiding foods that leach calcium

Pumping Up Your Iron Intake

<u>Understanding how much you need</u>

Obtaining your iron in vegan foods

Using iron to the best of your body's ability

Staying away from iron blockers

Vitamin D: The Sunlight Vitamin

Elevating your vitamin D intake naturally

Adding food or supplements to get your Vitamin D

```
Don't Forget Zinc!
    Picking up zinc from vegan foods
    Making sure your body absorbs it
 A Little Help from Our Friends: Giving Supplements a Try
Chapter 5: Protein Protocols
 What You Need to Know about Protein
 How Much Protein Do You Need?
    Protein needs for all ages and stages
    Protein problems: Why too much of a good thing is a bad thing
    Not enough protein? Symptoms to look out for
 Why Vegan Protein Is Better Than Animal Protein
 <u>Finding Protein in Vegan Foods</u>
    Protein-rich vegan favorites
    <u>Including fermented foods for easy protein digestion</u>
    Soy, oh boy! The controversy and confusion
<u>Chapter 6: Transforming Food into Health-Supportive Meals</u>
 Focusing on Quality over Quantity
    The proportions of your portions
    Quality is key
 Picking and Choosing: Healthy Vegan Food Groups
    Complex carbohydrates
    Seasonal veggies
    Sea vegetables
    Finding good fruits
    Proper proteins: Beans and legumes
    Aw, nuts! (And seeds)
```

Healthy fats

Supportive sweets

Part III: Sticking to Your Guns: Staying Vegan

Chapter 7: Cooking and Shopping Like a Vegan

Gearing Up with Basic Cooking Equipment

Pots, pans, and bakeware

Cooking utensils

Knives

Special equipment to consider

Filling Your Kitchen with Wholesome Whole Foods

Great grains

<u>Luscious legumes</u>

<u>Fruits and veggies</u>

Spices, seasonings, and handy condiments

Storing Your Goods to Ensure Freshness

Shopping Savvy

Vegan-friendly places to shop for food

Decoding food label lingo

Eco-vegan shopping tips

Chapter 8: Coexisting with the Meat Eaters in Your Home

<u>Kitchen Etiquette for Mixed Households</u>

Who's in a mixed household?

Staying sane in a mixed household

Keeping Everyone Healthy and Happy

Variety for vegans and nonvegans alike

```
Vegan meals everyone can love
    Supporting the family vegan nutritionally and emotionally
 Getting Your Kids Involved in Making Healthy Meals (Vegan or Otherwise)
<u>Chapter 9: Planning Your Meals to Stay on Track</u>
 Building a Plan for Vegan-rific Success
    Gathering easy and appealing recipes for meal planning
    Shopping smarter with vegan shopping lists
 Starting Your Meal Planning with the Best Breakfast for You
 Exploring Some Menu Ideas to Get You Started
    Easy breakfast options
    Quick lunch list
    Seven days of dinner
    Using menu charts
 Making Sure You Have Healthy Snacks On Hand
    Sweet treats
    Salty and savory snacks
    Crunchy morsels
<u>Chapter 10: Comfort Foods: Veganizing Meat, Dairy, and Other Old Favorites</u>
 Taking Comfort in Your Vegan Food: Why Veganizing Is Helpful and Fun
 <u>Taking Advantage of Mock Meats</u>
    Soybeans as protein
    Wheat meat (a.k.a. seitan)
    Mushrooms
    <u>Textured vegetable protein (TVP)</u>
    Bean and grain mash-ups
 Egg-cellent Egg-Free Cooking and Baking
```

Tofu as ovo

Binding without eggs

The New Dairy: Substituting with Vegan Milks, Butters, and Cheeses

Got other milks?

Baking with "butter"

Cheese options: Nutritional yeast, miso, and mochi

<u>Chapter 11: Beyond Food: Embracing the Whole Vegan Lifestyle</u>

Fashionably Compassionate: Animal-Free Clothing and Footwear

Where to buy the latest looks

What about wearing those old, nonvegan items?

Vegan Beauty Aids and Health Products

Waking up to your makeup

Checking labels and seals of approval

Scrutinizing ingredient lists

Being careful with medicines and flu shots

Keeping a Truly Vegan Home

Spotting and replacing hidden nonvegan home items

Cleaning up your cleaning products

Keeping pests away in a gentle way

Part IV: Tasting Is Believing: Vegan Recipes

Chapter 12: Breakfasts of Vegan Champions

Quick Fixes for Vegan Breakfasts

Savory Starters Vegan Style

Quick Breads for a Fast Breakfast

Chapter 13: Sides and Lighter Meals

Concocting Your Own Condiments

Filling Up with Some Sensational Sides

Whipping Up Soup and Salad Sensations

Chapter 14: Main Course Recipes

Oh Boy! Burgers and Burritos

Comforting Noodles and Pasta

World Cuisine: Trying Some Ethnic Staples

Beans and Rice Are Nice

Chapter 15: Just Desserts

Whipping Up Some Vegan Cookies, Brownies, and Bars

Tasting the Vegan Fruit

Everything Old Is New Again

Part V: Living Vegan in the Real World

Chapter 16: Walking the Vegan Walk (without Being Preachy!)

Encouraging and Enjoying Variety in Your Diet

<u>Displaying Kindness and Understanding with Your Nonvegan Friends and Family</u>

<u>Defending yourself without hurting others' feelings</u>

Avoiding the temptation to encourage others to follow your path

<u>Determining your way of being compassionate</u>

The Whole Enchilada: Yoking Your Mind, Body, and Spirit with the Earth

<u>Chapter 17: Vegans on the Move: Travel and Hotel Issues</u>

<u>Mapping Your Meals on the Road</u>

<u>Flying with Skill: Vegans in the Air and at the Airport</u>

Requesting a vegan meal (and making sure you get it)

Carrying on your own food

Finding vegan food in any airport

<u>Traveling Together: Cruises and Group Trips</u>

<u>Culture-Clash: Staying Vegan in Other Countries</u>

Chapter 18: Dining Out

Ask and Ye Shall Receive: Finding Vegan-Friendly Restaurants

Doing your research

<u>Discovering vegan-friendly ethnic eateries</u>

Making the Most of Nonvegan Menus

Getting what you need wherever you are

Helping vegan kids find yummy choices

Cafeteria conundrums: School and work lunches

<u>Incredible Ideas for Eating Anywhere</u>

Fast-food chains

Sandwich shops

Pizza parlors and Mexican joints

Beware of These Hidden Animal Ingredients

<u>Chapter 19: Navigating Tricky Social Situations</u>

<u>Hosting Parties, Traditional Meals, and Celebrations</u>

<u>Planning your event</u>

<u>Figuring out your menu</u>

Sample party plans and menus

Being a Guest at an Omnivorous Table

<u>Graciously accepting dinner party invitations</u>

Fancy functions: Weddings, bar/bat mitzvahs, and galas

<u>Dating a Nonvegan: Does True Love Really Conquer All?</u>

<u>Carrying Your Vegan Lifestyle to the Workplace</u>

Part VI: Veganism for All Walks of Life

<u>Chapter 20: Pea in a Pod: The Healthy Vegan Pregnancy and Postpartum Period</u>

Early Education and Proper Planning

Educating your loved ones about your dietary choices

Eating well before you're even pregnant

Get moving, vegan mama! Exercise and pregnancy

Eating for Two

Nutritional know-how: Getting enough of what you need

Awesome snack list for amazing mamas

<u>Discussing the Weighty Issue of Weight Gain</u>

<u>Understanding healthy weight gain</u>

Fighting media images of "skinny" mamas

Easy Meal Prep and Sanity-Saving Ideas

<u>Smart Tips for Common Pregnancy Problems</u>

Staving off pregnancy woes with fresh foods

Taking in plenty of water and electrolytes

Dealing with food cravings

Managing "morning" sickness

Caring for Yourself Postpartum

Choosing certain vegan foods for strength

Supplying yourself with foods that encourage good milk production

Meeting calorie and other nutrient requirements

Chapter 21: Bouncing Baby Vegans

Nourishing Your Newborn

Breastfeeding: So perfectly vegan!

Starting Older Babies on Solid Foods
Slow and steady wins the race
Deciding what and how to feed your growing baby
Watch Them as They Grow: Food for Toddlers
Choosing nutrient-dense foods over fiber
Outsmarting finicky eaters
Satisfying your little snacker
<u>Chapter 22: Vegan Diets for Kids, Tweens, and Teens</u>
<u>Is a Vegan Diet Safe? The Experts Weigh In</u>
<u>Understanding normal growth rates</u>
Looking at a new kind of growth chart
Discovering a Bounty of Choices for Your Little Vegan
Offering kid-friendly vegan fare
Dealing with kids' snack attacks
Making Sure Your Growing Vegans Are Getting the Nutrition They Need
Including the four vegan food groups in your kid's diet
Getting kids to think about calci-yum!
Iron's in it: Fitting iron into kids' menus
Emphasizing the power of protein
Gaining essential vitamins and minerals from food
Encouraging Kids to Eat Healthily
Easing kids into enjoying a vegan diet
Keeping a well-planned and well-stocked pantry and fridge
Promoting equal participation when feeding the family
Cooking in the kitchen with the kids

Thinking about formula as a last resort

Media Watch: Teaching Your Kids to Decode the Messages <u>Deflating kids' commercial interests (or at least explaining what they </u> see) Eliminating the pressure of the press Coming up with responsible responses to media-induced panic Taking Care of Your Children When They're Away Planning ahead Touching base with chaperones Chapter 23: The Vegan Athlete Macronutrients for Strength and Stamina Powerful vegan protein for performance Fueling your muscles with fat Taking in carbohydrates for endurance and brain power <u>Pumping Iron . . . and Calcium and Other Minerals</u> Maintaining healthy blood with vegan iron sources <u>Protecting your bones by staying on track with your calcium</u> Remembering your vitamins and minerals <u>Eating for Excellence in Your Sport of Choice</u> Preparing your diet before an athletic event Looking at long-term nutrition goals Chapter 24: Aging Gracefully and Veganly Boomer Bottom Line: Nutritional Needs after 40 <u>Sun + greens = healthy bones</u> <u>B healthy — get your B12</u> The right fats are fabulous

Keeping your iron in check

Metabolic Mayhem for the Mature

Healing Disease with a Vegan Diet

Improving cardiovascular health as you age

Easing digestion and elimination

My sign's not Cancer: Using a vegan diet to reverse cancer

Planning for Success with Easy Food Choices

Part VII: The Part of Tens

<u>Chapter 25: Ten Reasons for Eating a Vegan Diet</u>

It's Heart Healthy and Cancer Protective

It Keeps You Slim

<u>It Has a Lower Carbon Footprint</u>

It's Kind to All Living Creatures

It Provides Excellent Nutrition

It Protects Our Natural Resources

It Protects the Food Supply for All Humans

It Has Fewer Pesticides, Drugs, and Toxins

It Can Save You Money!

Vegans Are Cool! (Famous Vegan List)

Chapter 26: Top Ten Questions (and Answers) about Going Vegan

Why Would You Do Something Like That?

Where Do You Get Your Calcium?

Where Do You Get Your Protein?

What Can You Eat?

<u>Isn't That a Difficult Lifestyle to Get Used to?</u>

Do You Eat Fish or Dairy Products?

Where Can You Go Out to Eat?

Can You Be Healthy on a Vegan Diet?

What Do the Experts Think of Veganism?

Where Can I Learn More?

Chapter 27: Ten Ways to Make Vegan Living Extraordinary

Join a Local Vegan Group

Join a Few Online Vegan Groups

Throw a Totally Vegan Birthday Party

Write About Veganism

Hold a Fundraiser for Your Local No-Kill Animal Shelter

Meditate and Set Intentions at Mealtime

Vote Your Truth: Compassion in Action

Become a Pro in the Kitchen

Start a Vegan Victory Garden

Be More Free-Gan with Used Goods

Living Vegan For Dummies®

by Alexandra Jamieson, CHHC, AADP



Living Vegan For Dummies

Published by
Wiley Publishing, Inc.
111 River St.
Hoboken, NJ 07030-5774
www.wiley.com

Copyright © 2010 by Wiley Publishing, Inc., Indianapolis, Indiana

Published simultaneously in Canada

No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system, or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, photocopying, recording, scanning, or otherwise, except as permitted under Sections 107 or 108 of the 1976 United States Copyright Act, without either the prior written permission of the Publisher, or authorization through payment of the appropriate per-copy fee to the Copyright Clearance

Center, 222 Rosewood Drive, Danvers, MA 01923, 978-750-8400, fax 978-646-8600. Requests to the Publisher for permission should be addressed to the Permissions Department, John Wiley & Sons, Inc., 111 River Street, Hoboken, NJ 07030, (201) 748-6011, fax (201) 748-6008, or online at http://www.wiley.com/go/permissions.

Trademarks: Wiley, the Wiley Publishing logo, For Dummies, the Dummies Man logo, A Reference for the Rest of Us!, The Dummies Way, Dummies Daily, The Fun and Easy Way, Dummies.com, Making Everything Easier!, and related trade dress are trademarks or registered trademarks of John Wiley & Sons, Inc. and/or its affiliates in the United States and other countries, and may not be used without written permission. All other trademarks are the property of their respective owners. Wiley Publishing, Inc., is not associated with any product or vendor mentioned in this book.

Limit of Liability/Disclaimer of Warranty: The contents of this work are intended to further general scientific research, understanding, and discussion only and are not intended and should not be relied upon as recommending or promoting a specific method, diagnosis, or treatment by physicians for any particular patient. The publisher and the author make no representations or warranties with respect to the accuracy or completeness of the contents of this work and specifically disclaim all warranties, including without limitation any implied warranties of fitness for a particular purpose. In view of ongoing research,

equipment modifications, changes in governmental regulations, and the constant flow of information relating to the use of medicines, equipment, and devices, the reader is urged to review and evaluate the information provided in the package insert or instructions for each medicine, equipment, or device for, among other things, any changes in the instructions or indication of usage and for added warnings and precautions. Readers should consult with a specialist where appropriate. The fact that an organization or Website is referred to in this work as a citation and/or a potential source of further information does not mean that the author or the publisher endorses the information the organization or Website may provide or recommendations it may make. Further, readers should be aware that Internet Websites listed in this work may have changed or disappeared between when this work was written and when it is read. No warranty may be created or extended by any promotional statements for this work. Neither the publisher nor the author shall be liable for any damages arising herefrom.

For general information on our other products and services, please contact our Customer Care Department within the U.S. at 877-762-2974, outside the U.S. at 317-572-3993, or fax 317-572-4002.

For technical support, please visit www.wiley.com/techsupport.

Wiley also publishes its books in a variety of electronic formats. Some content that appears in print may not be

available in electronic books.

Library of Congress Control Number: 2009939780

ISBN: 978-0-470-52214-1

Manufactured in the United States of America

10 9 8 7 6 5 4 3 2 1



About the Author

Alexandra Jamieson, CHHC, AADP, has been seen on *Oprah, The Final Word, 30 Days,* and *The National Health Test with Bryant Gumbel.* She even was featured in the award-winning documentary *Super Size Me* (2004).

Why? Because Alex has proven herself to be a wise and profound voice for holistic nutrition and healthy living. In her book, *The Great American Detox Diet* (Rodale, 2005), Alex offers remarkably sane — and tasty — advice on how to detox, live healthfully, and feel fantastic.

Her knowledge of nutrition has been artfully developed through years of both professional and self-study. As the daughter of natural health advocates, Alex crafted a unique personal mission to spread the word about the power of healthy food and the astounding ways in which it can positively transform everyday life. Alex now commands a matchless repertoire of nutritional wisdom and food savvy.

Alex is a professionally trained healthy gourmet chef, having studied at New York City's Natural Gourmet Institute for Health and Culinary Arts. She refined her techniques by cooking professionally in Milan, Italy, as well as at a variety of popular New York City restaurants.

In addition, Alex is a certified health and nutrition counselor. She studied with groundbreaking pioneers in the field of nutrition at the Institute for Integrative Nutrition, which is accredited by Columbia University's Teacher's College and by the American Association of Drugless Practitioners.

Alex also traveled the world, visiting more than 20 countries while premiering *Super Size Me*, an Oscarnominated documentary, and acting as a messenger for the power of holistic nutrition and healthy detoxing. Though she readily and ably shares her message with all, her passion is helping professional women enhance their ability to excel and achieve using healthy food as a catalyst.

A healthy and energetic vegan herself, Alex lives in New York City with her family, including her vegan son, Laken, and a lively male cat named Sue.

For more information, please visit www.nutritionforempoweredwomen.com.

Dedication

This book is dedicated to my son, Laken, a shining example of a healthy vegan human being. And to everyone considering living as a vegan, or supporting someone who is on this path, I applaud your efforts to make this world a better place, one bite at a time.

Author's Acknowledgments

My heartfelt thanks and acknowledgements to the wonderful folks at Wiley Publishing, Inc. who made this book possible: Copy Editor Jessica Smith, Acquisitions Editor Lindsay Lefevere, Senior Project Editor Chrissy Guthrie, and all the Composition Department folks who helped with the layout and design work. Thanks also to Rachel Nix for the technical review, to Emily Nolan for the recipe testing, and to Patty Santelli for the nutritional analysis.

Publisher's Acknowledgments

We're proud of this book; please send us your comments through our online registration form located at http://dummies.custhelp.com. For other comments, please contact our Customer Care Department within the U.S. at 877-762-2974, outside the U.S. at 317-572-3993, or fax 317-572-4002.

Some of the people who helped bring this book to market include the following:

Acquisitions, Editorial, and Media Development

Senior Project Editor: Christina Guthrie

Senior Acquisitions Editor: Lindsay Lefevere

Copy Editor: Jessica Smith

Assistant Editor: Erin Calligan Mooney

Editorial Program Coordinator: Joe Niesen

Technical Editors: Rachel Nix, Emily Nolan, Patty

Santelli

Editorial Manager: Christine Meloy Beck

Editorial Assistants: David Lutton, Jennette ElNaggar

Art Coordinator: Alicia B. South

Cover Photos: Crystal Cartier

Cartoons: Rich Tennant (www.the5thwave.com)

Composition Services

Project Coordinator: Kristie Rees

Layout and Graphics: Ashley Chamberlain, Joyce

Haughey, Melissa K. Jester, Mark Pinto

Special Art: Illustrations by Elizabeth Kurtzman

Proofreaders: Melissa Cossell, Jessica Kramer, Penny

Stuart

Indexer: Becky Hornyak

Publishing and Editorial for Consumer Dummies

Diane Graves Steele, Vice President and Publisher, Consumer Dummies

Kristin Ferguson-Wagstaffe, Product Development Director, Consumer Dummies

Ensley Eikenburg, Associate Publisher, Travel

Kelly Regan, Editorial Director, Travel

Publishing for Technology Dummies

Andy Cummings, Vice President and Publisher, Dummies Technology/General User

Composition Services

Debbie Stailey, Director of Composition Services

Introduction

Growing up in the wilds of Oregon, my artist/gardener mom and teacher dad taught me many lessons that served me well over the years. I was lucky enough to be raised in a family that saw the connections between fresh food, health, people, the animals and insects, and the earth we lived on. We did eat meat, dairy, eggs, and honey from our beekeeping friends, but I had a solid education in "the web of life 101." My older brother and I were pretty healthy; we ate lots of fresh food, and we rarely ate out.

My parents canned tomatoes and set aside jars of blackberry jam, and the whole family would spend hours in local u-pick farms gathering hazelnuts or cherries when the season was right.

As I grew up and moved away from home, my eating habits strayed from freshly-made, organic foods to the standard American diet of fast-food, lots of soda with high-fructose corn syrup, regular doses of fried foods, and few fresh fruits or vegetables. By the time I reached my late 20s, I was getting sick and depressed, had frequent migraines, and started gaining weight quickly for the first time in my life. I realized that what I was eating was making me sick and that I had to make a change if I were to be a fully functioning, happy person again.

I went to a holistic doctor who diagnosed me with an underlying *Candida* yeast overgrowth and recommended a sugar- and dairy-free diet to help my body recover. As I read everything the library had to offer on natural foods, the vegan diet, and the realities of health and the food system, I realized that I had caused my own health

problems with my diet and discovered that my food choices had a large impact on the world around me.

I started eating vegan, whole foods within a week and immediately started to feel better. My headaches went away, the excess weight melted off, and I was clearheaded and energetic for the first time in years. I took my newfound passion for food and enrolled in a professional chef's training program at the Natural Gourmet Institute in New York City.

I later realized I wanted to help people discover how to heal their own health problems with good food and dietary choices. Since graduating from the Institute for Integrative Nutrition, I have helped countless clients all over the world improve their health by including more plant-based options to their diets.

About This Book

As more people are exposed to the realities of how our food is produced and processed and how it affects our health, eating a vegan diet becomes more popular as a way to follow a healthier, more vibrant path through life. World-class athletes and popular musicians, actors, and artists achieve incredible levels of human fitness and create amazing works of art all while living a vegan life.

This book is for new vegans and the people who love them. It's also for vegetarians who want to make the switch and lifelong carnivores who are curious about what a vegan is and what they eat. This book also can help comfort your friends and family by providing the information to quiet the fears of you wasting away to nothing by "living on lettuce."

Even if you aren't sure a vegan diet is right for you, this book can help you understand the amazing benefits of a plant-based diet. Including more vegetables, fruits, whole grains, beans, nuts, and seeds is something we're all encouraged to do by the FDA, USDA, and the ADA! Even Mom says so! If you want to improve your health, reduce your health concerns, lose weight, improve your energy and stamina, prolong your life expectancy, protect the environment, and save the lives of countless animals, this book is for you.

Living Vegan For Dummies provides an incredible amount of information that can be useful whether you read it from start to finish or not. Every chapter is written in easy-to-understand language and has distinct parts with helpful references and lots of tips and real-world strategies. The recipes can help you enjoy vegan food even if you aren't a trained chef. And most important, every chapter helps you get closer to a cruelty-free life.

Conventions Used in This Book

Following are a few conventions I've used that you should be aware of:

Whenever I introduce you to a new food or term, I put it in *italics*.

Keywords in bulleted lists or the action parts in numbered steps appear in **boldface.**

Web sites appear in monofont.

When this book was printed, some Web addresses may have needed to break across two lines of text. If that happened, rest assured that I haven't put in any extra characters (such as hyphens) to indicate the break. So when using one of these Web addresses, just type in exactly what you see in this book, pretending as though the line break doesn't exist.

What You're Not to Read

For Dummies books are full of useful extras that pop out at you while you're reading. Fun facts and useful sidebars give you inspiration and ammunition for the vegan road ahead. You'll notice this extra information highlighted with gray shaded boxes or Technical Stuff icons throughout the chapters. You can commit these items to memory to remind yourself and others of why this lifestyle is so amazing, or you can skip them and just dive into the information that seems most important to you at the time. Just remember that this extra information is just that — extra. You don't have to read it in order to understand the topic at hand.

Foolish Assumptions

In writing this book, I made a few assumptions about you, the reader:

You like to eat food, but you want to stop eating animal products.

You like to wear clothes, but you want to stop wearing animal products.

You like to wash and pamper your body, but you want to stop using products that contain animal ingredients or products that were tested on animals.

When you buy something to use or consume, you often ask yourself or someone else "where did this come from?" or "what is this made of?" or "what am I contributing to when I buy this?"

You have cooked a little or none at all, but you know you would like to start making some if not all your own food.

You're curious about how to maintain proper health while eating a vegan diet.

You aren't afraid to take a risk or be considered "weird" by the rest of society — most cool vegans are a little outside the mainstream, but that's what we like to be!

If these assumptions spoke to you, you found yourself nodding your head while reading this list, or you can easily picture your loved one who wants to become a vegan, you're reading the right book.

How This Book Is Organized

Living Vegan For Dummies is divided into seven parts. Each part covers a different area of vegan living. Read through the description for each part and then go to the chapters that excite you the most. Every part works in conjunction with the others to help you build a vibrant, conscious, and deliciously healthy life.

Part I: "Ve-gan" at the Beginning

Part I lays out what a vegan diet and lifestyle encompasses. It details the reasons people choose to become vegan in the first place and covers the ways in which choosing a vegan diet can lead to better health for yourself and can protect animals and the planet. This part also discusses the ways to make the switch from a vegetarian or omnivorous diet to a healthy, plant-based, vegan diet.

Part II: Building a Healthy Vegan Diet

This part serves as your nutritional guide to creating a healthy meal plan. I show you how to include proper protein, calcium, iron, B12, and other nutrients along with delicious vegan ingredients to ensure a well-rounded diet. An important feature of Part II is the lists of healthy, whole vegan foods. These lists help you choose foods to ensure that you're getting the nutrition you need while eating a vegan diet.

Part III: Sticking to Your Guns: Staying Vegan

The nuts and bolts of making a vegan diet work for you and your family are found in Part III. Here you can find all sorts of information, including cooking tools you need to buy, tips on how to shop for and store food items, and guidelines for planning your meals for ease and success. This part also includes handy snack and shopping lists as well as ways to cook your old favorite foods in new, vegan ways. Finally it takes you beyond the kitchen to your bathroom and closets to help you find hidden animal ingredients and products that you want to avoid.

Part IV: Tasting Is Believing: Vegan Recipes

This part is where you find delicious, mouthwatering recipes for every part of the day. I include breakfasts for school and workdays, brunch ideas for leisurely weekend meals, smaller side dishes, one-pot meals for the beginner or time-pressed chef, and delicious desserts for everyone. For all these recipes, I call for vegan ingredients and provide you with simple-to-follow instructions.

Part V: Living Vegan in the Real World

In this part, you take your first tentative steps outside of the happy vegan bubble you've created for yourself at